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          1  PLANNING DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Good morning,

          3  everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee on Planning,

          4  Dispositions and Concessions, a Subcommittee of Land

          5  Use of the New York City Council. Today's date is

          6  Thursday, June 7th. I'm Dan Garodnick, the Chair of

          7  this Committee. I've been joined by Committee

          8  members, Maria Baez of the Bronx, and Inez Dickens

          9  of Manhattan. We have a relatively brief agenda

         10  today, so we'll get right to it.

         11                 We're going to open the hearing on

         12  Land Use No. 387, which is 505 West 51st Street.

         13  This is a property in the District of the Speaker,

         14  Council Member Quinn. Manhattan Community Board 4.

         15  C070260 HAM. Development of a six-story mixed use

         16  building with approximately ten units. So, I'd like

         17  to invite Carol Clark of HPD to, one, introduce

         18  herself, and two, go ahead and introduce the item.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         20  you, Chairman Garodnick, and Council members. It's a

         21  pleasure to be here. I'm Carol Clark, Assistant

         22  Commissioner, HPD. And as you noted, LU 387 consists

         23  of the proposed disposition of one City-owned lot,

         24  located at 505 West 51st Street, under HPD's

         25  inclusionary housing program.
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          2                 The proposed sponsor, Clinton Housing

          3  Development Fund Corporation will construct one

          4  six-story mixed-use building which will provide ten

          5  residential units, over 4,000 square feet of

          6  commercial space, in 825 square feet of open space.

          7                 Council Member Quinn has been briefed

          8  and reviewed the project and indicated her support.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         11  much. You said 4,000 square feet of commercial?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         13  right. It's 4,343 square feet of commercial space in

         14  the project.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the

         16  commercial space is the low level?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         18  right, it's on the ground floor.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And can you

         20  say a little more about the open space, the 825

         21  square feet?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's

         23  adjacent, and it will be available to the residents

         24  of the building as open space.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, it's just
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          2  available to the residents?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: All right, we

          6  have one person wishing to testify on this item. Ms.

          7  Clark, you can stay. We have enough seats for

          8  everybody. So, I'm going to invite Brian Cook of the

          9  Manhattan Borough President's Office.

         10                 Welcome back, Mr. Cook, to testify on

         11  this item. We are in Land Use 387.

         12                 Welcome.

         13                 MR. COOK: Thank you, Council Member.

         14  It's good to be back. I feel like I'm here more than

         15  I'm at my desk now. Once again, I'd like to testify

         16  on behalf of the item.

         17                 We believe that the proposed project

         18  will serve several important uses. First, it will

         19  provide space for artists' housing, which is

         20  drastically being lost in the neighborhood because

         21  artists are being priced out.

         22                 By far this is an absolutely

         23  admirable pursuit and one that we at the Manhattan

         24  Borough President's Office support.

         25                 Further, this project is working to
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          2  keep the current industrial uses, the auto garage,

          3  from being displaced, which can serve as a model on

          4  how residential development and, you know, some of

          5  the lighter industrial uses, can work together

          6  without displacement in these sort of former

          7  manufacturing zones, which, again, we think is

          8  wonderful.

          9                 And last, but not least, the owner

         10  and HPD, I believe, has sent a memorandum of

         11  understanding that there will be no nightclubs, you

         12  know, bars, industrial or adult uses within the

         13  retail space, which is obviously oversaturated in

         14  the neighborhood.

         15                 We appreciate the fact that there are

         16  leads, you know, there are sustainable designs to

         17  this development. We wish there were more, as we

         18  always do. It's a high priority for the Borough

         19  President's Office but really pushes towards more

         20  City properties, rather than what a non-profit can

         21  do with limited funds developing in the heart of

         22  Manhattan.

         23                 Because of all of this we recommend

         24  fully to approve this project, and we hope the

         25  Subcommittee agrees.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          3  much, Mr. Cook.

          4                 And seeing no other members of the

          5  public wishing to testify on this item, we will

          6  close this hearing on Land Use 387. That's 505 West

          7  51st Street, 070260 HAM. And we're going to open the

          8  hearing on three related items, Land Use 408, 409

          9  and 410, which are a part of the Boricua Village.

         10  You can tell me if I've pronounced that correct.

         11  Boricua Village Melrose Common. And these are in the

         12  districts of Council Members Foster and Arroyo, they

         13  are respectively Land Use 408, C070275 HUX. Land Use

         14  409, C070276 ZMX. And Land Use 410, C070277 HAX. So,

         15  Ms. Clark, if you could introduce and talk about

         16  these three Land Use items together.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'd be

         18  happy to. And I'm joined by Ted Weinstein, who is

         19  the Long-term Director of Bronx Planning at HPD.

         20                 LU 408 consists of the first

         21  amendment to the Melrose Commons Urban Renewal Plan.

         22  The plan is proposed to be amended to change Land

         23  Use designations and eliminate height restrictions

         24  to facilitate the proposed development of Boricua

         25  Village, known as LU 410, as well as the future
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          2  project. Both Council Members Foster and Arroyo have

          3  reviewed the amended plan and have indicated their

          4  support.

          5                 LU 409 consists of the proposed

          6  zoning map amendment to facilitate the development

          7  of the proposed Boricua Village, and, again, Council

          8  Members Foster and Arroyo have reviewed the proposed

          9  zoning amendments, and indicated their support.

         10                 And then LU 410, known as Boricua

         11  Village, consists of the proposed disposition of 35

         12  vacant City-owned lots and portions of seven

         13  additional vacant City-owned lots, as well as

         14  portions of de-mapped City streets for development

         15  through HPD's Cornerstone Program.

         16                 The sponsor, Atlantic Development

         17  Group, LLC, will construct six residential and mixed

         18  use buildings, which will yield a total of 679

         19  units.

         20                 The sponsor will also construct

         21  120,000 square foot college facility. Council Member

         22  Arroyo has reviewed the project and indicated her

         23  support.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. So,
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          2  let's just go back and take these one at a time,

          3  just to make sure we're clear.

          4                 The Land Use 408 is the change of the

          5  Land Use designations. Can you just say a little

          6  more about that?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'll

          8  ask Ted to respond to that question.

          9                 MR. WEINSTEIN: The zoning change?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: We're looking

         11  at Land Use 408.

         12                 MR. WEINSTEIN: 408 is the amending of

         13  the Urban Renewal Plan. There are, I believe, 18 or

         14  19 different specific changes to the plan.

         15                 This is the first amending of a plan

         16  which was originally adopted in 1994. A number of

         17  the changes have to do with facilitating the Boricua

         18  Village Project, some of the others are other items

         19  which were felt were warranted at this point.

         20                 Do you want to go into details about

         21  the individual --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I think you

         23  should.

         24                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Sure.

         25                 Well, one of the things, for example,
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          2  is the Urban Renewal Plan has height restrictions.

          3  If you're in an R7, you can't build more than 45

          4  feet. In an R8, you can't build more than 85 feet.

          5  It would delete those restrictions for this

          6  particular project site.

          7                 The majority of the site itself was

          8  originally intended to be either commercial, for

          9  commercial use, it's now being changed to allow for

         10  residential use on a particular site. There are a

         11  couple of other sites within Melrose Commons that

         12  were also supposed to be commercial use, they are

         13  now being changed to have residential use as well.

         14                 There was one section of the plan

         15  that had a series of combinations and permutations

         16  of minimum heights. It was just never really

         17  applicable to the projects that were being built,

         18  and it was actually rather confusing to the

         19  developers and the property owners, and so we're

         20  eliminating that.

         21                 All of these changes, prior to us

         22  actually even drafting the ULURP applications, we

         23  met with the community board, the District Manager,

         24  the Borough President's Office, the Council members,

         25  community groups, and went over all of this with all
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          2  of them prior to even starting.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Understood.

          4  And just realize that I want to make sure that we

          5  have this all out in this particular hearing, and I

          6  do know the background that you all have had, the

          7  meetings with the members involved and the community

          8  groups, but just to be clear that there were height

          9  restrictions and minimums and the commercial

         10  designation, which no longer were appropriate for

         11  what was sought to be developed here on this site,

         12  for the new residential units. Is that a fair

         13  statement?

         14                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And just to

         16  give us a sense for those of us who are not

         17  particularly familiar with the area, what is there

         18  today?

         19                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Okay, the site for the

         20  Boricua Village project is mostly vacant land. There

         21  are seven small buildings that will need to be

         22  demolished, as well as an old courthouse. That is

         23  where the college building itself will be built.

         24                 So the developer will be demolishing

         25  those buildings. Most of them, the majority of this
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          2  site at this point is vacant.

          3                 I know there are different actions

          4  here. The amending of the Urban Renewal Plan applies

          5  to the entire Urban Renewal Area, most of which at

          6  this point the sites have already been designated,

          7  either are already completed construction, are in

          8  construction, will have developers designated.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. All

         10  right. And before we go on, I just want to make note

         11  of the fact that we've been joined by Council Member

         12  Vincent Ignizio, who is a member of this Committee.

         13  Council Member Sara Gonzalez, and Council Member

         14  David Yassky.

         15                 Lastly, on the Cornerstone element of

         16  this, there were seven vacant lots in which you're

         17  planning to put six buildings; is that correct?

         18                 MR. WEINSTEIN: The project is

         19  actually going to consist of seven residential

         20  buildings, plus the college building.

         21                 The number of current tax slots is 42

         22  tax lots. Plus, the streets in between. It's

         23  creating a super block. At the time of the original

         24  plan in 1994, the parts of the streets between these

         25  three blocks would be mapped, and so while they
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          2  physically still exist as streets, they no longer

          3  are so, and so the beds of those demapped streets

          4  are part of the project, therefore creating the

          5  superblock on which this complex will be built.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, under

          7  the Cornerstone project, the residential units will

          8  be made available to whom?

          9                 MR. WEINSTEIN: There is going to be a

         10  mixture. Some of the buildings will be done through

         11  HDC's Land Program and our MER Program (phonetic),

         12  so they are lower income. Some will be using HDC's

         13  NEWHOP Program (phonetic), which is more of a

         14  moderate, mixed income.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Can you give

         16  us percentages?

         17                 MR. WEINSTEIN: For the lower income

         18  it's generally for people under 60 percent of AMI.

         19  And for the NEWHOP, it will be underwritten for

         20  people up to 80 percent of AMI, but the eligibility

         21  band goes a little higher.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         23  That's good to know. I actually was talking about

         24  the percentage of the lower versus the NEWHOP, what

         25  percentage of them would be eligible for people
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          2  under each scenario?

          3                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Okay, slightly more

          4  than half of the total project will be the higher.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Slightly more

          6  than half would be the NEWHOP Program.

          7                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. All

          9  right, seeing no other members of the public wishing

         10  to testify on this item, we will close the hearing

         11  on Land Use Nos 408, 409 and 410, and we are going

         12  to, let's see, we have a couple of motions to file.

         13  We're going to move on to a property in Council

         14  Member Yassky's district.

         15                 This is Land Use No. 449, non-ULURP

         16  No. 20075474 HAK. The address is 269 Lee Avenue in

         17  Brooklyn. It's part of the StoreWorks Program.

         18                 Welcome. Ms. Clark, will you go ahead

         19  and introduce Land Use 449.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK sure. LU

         21  449, known as DeKalb Lee B, consists of the proposed

         22  disposition of one vacant mixed-use building located

         23  at 269 Lee Avenue for disposition through HPD's

         24  StoreWorks Program.

         25                 The proposed sponsor, NHS Community
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          2  Development Corporation, will rehabilitate the

          3  building and sell it to an eligible purchaser.

          4                 We've had dialogue with Council

          5  Member Yassky regarding it, and he has indicated his

          6  support.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And he is

          8  present, so let's give Council Member Yassky a

          9  chance to speak for himself.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: He is present.

         11  Well, just want to go over the facts again. It's

         12  five units, will be five units at the end of the

         13  day?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         15  correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: One, there

         17  will be one owner who can either be a resident or

         18  the store operator?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And the other

         22  units, are we agreed that we will -- that they will

         23  all be subject to rent limitations and income

         24  limitations for the tenants?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: What will

          4  those be?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Up to

          6  165 percent of the area median income.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, for each

          8  of the four?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And the four

         11  are two bedrooms and one bedrooms?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         13  right. You remember correctly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: All right.

         15  Well, thank you. I do support this item, and I thank

         16  very much Carol and the Commissioner for working so

         17  productively on this.

         18                 As you know, Mr. Chair, I've had some

         19  concerns about whether this was, the HomeWorks,

         20  StoreWorks is an effective way to deliver affordable

         21  housing. I think that as structured this way, where

         22  all the units are income limited, this project is

         23  meritorious, and I urge you to support it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: With that, we

          5  will close the hearing on Land Use 449, non-ULURP

          6  20075474 HAK, and open the hearing on Land Use 461,

          7  non-ULURP No. 20075520 HAK, which is 37-60 98th

          8  Street in Queens, in the district of Council Member

          9  Monserrate.

         10                 Ms. Clark.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         12  LU 461 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         13  occupied City-owned parcel for rehabilitation under

         14  HPD's negotiated sale program.

         15                 The sponsor, New York City ACORN,

         16  will rehabilitate the building to provide six units

         17  of rental housing.

         18                 Council Member Monserrate has

         19  reviewed the project and indicated his support.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thanks. What's

         21  going to happen for the occupant?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They're

         23  going to occupy the building. The estimated rental

         24  is up to 60 percent of AMI for four of the units,

         25  and up to 50 percent of AMI for the other two units.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, will the

          3  occupant of the building be able to stay during the

          4  rehab?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No.

          6  They're going to vacate the building during the

          7  rehab and there is alternate space that's being made

          8  available for them by ACORN.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         10                 Seeing nobody else wishing to testify

         11  on Land Use 461, non-ULURP No. 20075520 HAQ, we will

         12  close the hearing on that item.

         13                 We have two motions to file pursuant

         14  to withdrawal. The first is Land Use 404, non-ULURP

         15  No. 20075312 HAK. I have a letter here from you, Ms.

         16  Clark, to Gail Benjamin, the Director of the Land

         17  Use Division, regarding Land Use 404, four

         18  properties that are covered by that item. And it

         19  says in part, "On behalf of the New York City

         20  Department of Housing Preservation and Development,

         21  I request the above-referenced properties be

         22  withdrawn from consideration before the Council's

         23  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

         24  Concessions." That is dated May 31.

         25                 And as to Land Use 426, very
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          2  similarly, a letter from you, Ms. Clark, to Gail

          3  Benjamin, Director of the Land Use Division, dated

          4  May 31, regarding Land Use 426, about the two

          5  parcels of property on Hinsdale Street. Again, it is

          6  a request that the above-referenced properties be

          7  withdrawn from consideration before the Council's

          8  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          9  Concessions.

         10                 So, with that, we are going to couple

         11  together all of the items on which we had a hearing

         12  today, we are going to lay over the rest at the

         13  request of the individual members in whose district

         14  the properties sit, and the Chair recommends an aye

         15  vote on all of the items that we considered today,

         16  and I'm going to ask the Counsel to call the roll.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair

         18  Garodnick.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Baez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Gonzalez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Dickens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Ignizio.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          9  five in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         10  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         11  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Great. Thank

         13  you, everybody. And this hearing is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 10:34 a.m.)
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